
AGENDA

 



REGULAR 
MEETING

 



CONSENT 
AGENDA

 



MINUTES



October 18, 2017
Special Meeting

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD OCTOBER 18, 2017

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Wednesday, October 18, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. 
in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia.

PRESENT: Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor
Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor
Arlene Holloway, Councilor
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor
Janice Denton, Councilor
Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor
Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor

Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk

ROLL CALL

Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows:

Mayor Shornak - present
Vice Mayor Gore - present
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present
Councilor Holloway - present
Councilor Zevgolis - present
Councilor Denton - present
Councilor Pelham - present

ADOPT AGENDA

Motion was made at 6:30 p.m. by Councilor Zevgolis and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to adopt 
the agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:

Mayor Shornak - yes
Vice Mayor Gore - yes
Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes
Councilor Holloway - yes
Councilor Zevgolis - yes
Councilor Denton - yes
Councilor Pelham - yes

CLOSED MEETING

Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into Closed 
Meeting for discussion and consideration of prospective candidates for employment of appointment of 
specific appointees of city council (city manager, city attorney); and consultation with legal counsel 
employed or retained by city council related thereto and other specific legal matters requiring the provision 
of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1)
and (8), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:



October 18, 2017
Special Meeting

Mayor Shornak - yes
Vice Mayor Gore - yes
Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes
Councilor Holloway - yes
Councilor Zevgolis - yes
Councilor Denton - yes
Councilor Pelham - yes

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING

Council convened into Open Session at 8:00 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted:

Mayor Shornak - yes
Vice Mayor Gore - yes
Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes
Councilor Holloway - yes
Councilor Zevgolis - yes
Councilor Denton - yes
Councilor Pelham - yes

ADJOURN

At 8:01 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to 
adjourn. All councilors responded “aye”.

/s/
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor

/s/
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk



PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT



DATE: October 10, 2017

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist 

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – September 2017

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only)

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
ALLEN, CALEB FIRE FIREFIGHTER 09/27/2017 

ALLGOOD, JOSEPH POLICE POLICE OFFICER 09/18/2017 
BULEZA, RICHARD POLICE POLICE OFFICER 09/18/2017 
CHADEK, COLTON POLICE POLICE OFFICER 09/18/2017 

DRAHMS, CLAYTON POLICE POLICE OFFICER 09/18/2017 
ENNIS, DEVON PUBLIC WORKS CONV CTR MAIN SPEC 09/27/2017 

HERETICK, JOHN PUBLIC WORKS PW MAINT SPEC 09/13/2017 
JOHNSON, JEREMY FIRE FIREFIGHTER 09/27/2017 

KING, TIMOTHY RECREATION  ATHLETIC SITE ASST 09/11/2017 
LOWE, REAGAN RECREATION RESPITE LEADER 09/13/2017 

MCCALL, THOMAS PUBLIC WORKS PW MAINT SPEC 09/13/2017 
PERKINS, GERALD FIRE FIREFIGHTER 09/27/2017 
POTTS, ALLEANA TREASURER DEPUTY TREAS II 09/27/2017 
WHITBY, WYATT FIRE FIREFIGHTER 09/27/2017 

WILKINSON, AMY RECREATION ATHLETIC SITE ASST 09/11/2017 

PROMOTIONS

MALDONADO, EDWARD WATER RENEWAL CHIEF CHEMIST 09/27/2017 

SEPARATIONS

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
CUNNINGHAM, LUKE FIRE FIREFIGHTER 09/15/2017 

NEWTON, CABEL SOCIAL SERVICES ADMIN PROG ASST I 09/22/2017 
SANCHEZ, TIA HEALTHY FAMILIES DIR HEALTHLY FAM 09/25/2017 

WADE III, HORACE  DEVELOPMENT SENIOR PLANNER 09/15/2017 

CC: Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager Ron Hamilton, IT
Renia Coles, HR Director Jay Rezin, IT
Debbie Pershing, Senior Executive Assistant Dave Harless, Risk/Safety Coordinator
Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Recreation
Dipo Muritala, Accounting Manager
Kim Hunter, Payroll
 



FINANCIAL 
REPORT

 











ROUTINE 
GRANT 

APPROVAL



SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 Mayor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business
Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 
Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Routine Grant Approval

ISSUE: The Recreation and Parks Department has received a $300 grant from the Virginia Association 
for Competitive Swimming, Inc. to create a new lifeguard position to assist with swim team practice 
coverage.

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval

TIMING:  October 24, 2017

BACKGROUND: The Virginia Association for Swimming, Inc. (VACS) hosts a competitive swim 
team program at the Hopewell Community Center. The organization is offering a grant to help fund an 
additional lifeguard position that will provide coverage during swim team practices.

FISCAL IMPACT: $300 increase to payroll funding.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  None

STAFF: Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks

SUMMARY:

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER

STAFF:   



PUBLIC HEARING
ANNOUNCEMENTS 



INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW
 



EDA Meeting 08/07/2017 @ 5:30pm

Present: Debbie Randolph, Tom Wagstaff, Bob Moore, Joan Gosier, Elliot Eliades, Steve Pettler and 
Lynda Frink

Absent: none

Staff Present: Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager  

Others Present: none

Called to order: D. Randolph called the meeting to order at 5:30pm in the Second Floor City 
Conference Room.

Approval of Agenda:
A motion made by E. Eliades and 2nd by B. Moore to amend the Agenda so that Charles Dane can give his 
report first, (#7) so that he can attend another meeting. Motion carried. 

CLOSED SESSION:
The EDA entered into closed session to discuss matters related to business development not subject to 
open meeting requirements. The motion was made to go into closed session by T. Wagstaff and 2nd by 
E. Eliades. Motion carried.  Mr. Dane reviewed all projects currently in the pipeline and discussed any 
forthcoming.  
                          
Upon returning to open session the Board stated only matters discussed in closed session were those not 
subject to open meeting requirements. Roll call vote: D. Randolph, Yes; B. Moore, Yes; T. Wagstaff, 
Yes; J. Gosier, Yes; Elliot Eliades, Yes; and S. Pettler, Yes and L. Frink, Yes. 

Treasurer’s Report:
Joan Gosier provided a treasurer’s report. She reported that Randy Howard, CPA will give us his contract 
by the next meeting for review. D. Randolph thanked Joan for the great work she is doing as treasurer. 

Minutes: The minutes of the June 2017 meeting were reviewed. A motion to accept the minutes as
written was made by T. Wagstaff and 2nd by S. Pettler. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Report: 
D. Randolph reported that the EDA is paying utilities at the Luna’s and Scoops buildings,
Mr. Wagstaff and Mr. Eliades are reviewing the Legacy Business Program guidelines and present at the 
next meeting.

New Business: 
A motion was made by S. Pettler and 2nd by J. Gosier to reimburse Elliott Eliades $240.00 for cutting 
grass at the Bopper’s property since April. Motion carried. (Elliott Eliades refrained from voting)

Next meeting: August 28, 2017 in the Second Floor City Conference Room @ 5:30pm.

Adjourn: Motion by T. Wagstaff to adjourn, 2nd by E. Eliades; adjourned at 7:00pm. 

























PROCLAMATIONS
§

RESOLUTIONS 
§

PRESENTATIONS
 



Whereas, the government of Hopewell, Virginia celebrates our local small businesses and 
the contributions they make to our local economy and community; according to the United 
States Small Business Administration, there are currently 28.8 million small businesses in 
the United States, they represent 99.7 percent of all businesses with employees in the 
United States, are responsible for 63 percent of net new jobs created over the past 20 
years, and 
 
Whereas, small businesses employ 48 percent of the employees in the private 
sector in the United States; and 
 
Whereas, on average, 33 percent of consumers’ holiday shopping will be done at 
small, independently-owned retailers and restaurants; and 
 
Whereas, 91 percent of all consumers believe that supporting small, 
independently-owned restaurants and bars is important; and 
 
Whereas, 76 percent of all consumers plan to go to one or more small businesses 
as part of their holiday shopping; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Hopewell supports our local businesses that create jobs, 
boost our local economy and preserve our neighborhoods; and 
 
Whereas, advocacy groups as well as public and private organizations across the 
country have endorsed the Saturday after Thanksgiving as Small Business 
Saturday. 
 
Now, Therefore, I, Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor of Hopewell, Virginia do hereby 
proclaim, November 25, 2017, as: 
 

SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY 
 
And urge the residents of our community, and communities across the country, to support 
small businesses and merchants on Small Business Saturday and throughout the year. 



A RESOLUTION TO URGE THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES AND THE UNITED STATES CONGRESS 
TO CONTINUE THE FEDERAL HISTORIC TAX CREDIT PROGRAM, AND TO OTHERWISE PROVIDE WITH 
RESPECT THERETO.   

WHEREAS, the federal Historic Tax Credit program (HTC) as we know it today was put in place by 
Congress and the Reagan Administration to attract capital to historic rehabilitation projects that help 
stimulate local economies; and  

WHEREAS, since the inception of the HTC, it has created over 2.4 million jobs, rehabilitated more than 
42,000 buildings, and leveraged $131.8 billion in private investment; and  

WHEREAS, recognizing the importance of this successful federal economic development program, more 
than 35 states have enacted complementary state historic tax credit programs to help revitalize the 
commercial downtowns of their cities and Main Street communities; and  

WHEREAS, federal HTC projects have a 99 percent success rate, leverage four private dollars for every 
dollar of federal support, and are catalytic, building neighborhood confidence and generating follow-on 
projects for blocks around; and   

WHEREAS, over the life of this program, the HTC has generated $29.8 billion in federal tax revenues 
compared to $25.2 billion in credits allocated—more than paying for itself; and 

WHEREAS, the federal HTC program has helped create over $12M in private investment and numerous 
rehabs of blighted structures within the City of Hopewell. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Hopewell, Virginia in due regular and legal 
session convened, that the Council supports the federal Historic Tax Credit program and urges the 
President of the United States and the United States Congress to continue the federal Historic Tax Credit 
program.    

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any provision of this resolution or the application thereof is held 
invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions, items or applications of this resolution which can 
be given effect without the invalid provisions, items, or applications and to this end the provisions of this 
resolution are hereby declared severable.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 



PUBLIC 
HEARINGS



COMMUNICATIONS 
FROM CITIZENS

 



REGULAR 
BUSINESS

 



R-1

 



Council Action Form 2017
SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3 Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4

Insert 
Date of 
Meeting

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business

Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 

Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Offer in compromise for $17,000 to pay delinquent taxes.

RECOMMENDATION: To consider offer in compromise for $17,000 as payment in full for all 
delinquent amounts and attorney’s fees/costs due on 2909 Danville Street (parcel 0150095) as 
allowed per Virginia Code.

TIMING: City Council action is requested on October 24, 2017.

BACKGROUND: Kay Wall inherited the property located at 2909 Danville Street upon the death 
of her father, Robert Wall.  Real estate taxes have been delinquent since 2006 and were forwarded 
to Sands Anderson for collection.  Ms. Wall currently has an offer to buy the property and has 
proposed to pay the City $17,000 to satisfy all delinquent amounts; however, the total amount due
as of November 30, 2017 (including attorney’s fees) is $24,160.46. The $17,000 offer in 
compromise would cover all taxes and grass liens, attorney’s fees and costs, but would not pay all 
penalty and/or interest.  If the offer in compromise is not accepted, the property would go to 
public auction at a future date but could sell for an amount less than $17,000. Virginia Code
Section 58.1-3994, Paragraph B allows the treasurer, with the consent of the governing body, to 
compromise and settle the amount owed “when the treasurer or other official determines that the 
collection of the entire amount due and owing is in substantial doubt and the best interest of the 
locality will be served by such compromise.”

It is therefore requested that Council consider the $17,000 as payment in full for all delinquent 
amounts (including attorney’s fees) on 2909 Danville Street for tax years 2006 through 2017 and, if 
approved, allow treasurer to reduce/write off penalty and/or interest in the amount of $7,160.46.

FISCAL IMPACT: $7,160.46

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: Virginia Code Section 58.1-3994
Kay Wall’s Offer in Compromise

STAFF: Teresa L. Batton, Treasurer



1

Ronnieye Arrington

From: wallkayva <wallkayva@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2017 11:04 PM
To: Treasurer's Office
Subject: Offer of tax settlement on property at 2909 Danville Street, Hopewell,  Va. 23860.

Ms. Batton,

This is confirmation of an offer I made by email tonight to the Hopewell City Attorney, Mr. Calos, on 
the above mentioned property, which was owned by my father from 1950 until his passing in 2012, in 
the amount of $17,000.00.

If everything goes as planned, we plan to settle on or before Nov. 6th.

Any consideration of this offer will be much appreciated

Thank you,
Kay Wall
3003 Sterlings Bridge Place
Midlothian, Virginia 23112
804/744-1536

Sent from my Sprint Samsung Galaxy S7. 



Code of Virginia
Title 58.1. Taxation
Chapter 39. Enforcement, Collection, Refunds, Remedies and Review of Local Taxes
    
§ 58.1-3994. Offers in compromise with respect to local taxes
  
A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the commissioner of the revenue or other official
responsible for the assessment of any local tax appealed pursuant to § 58.1-3703.1 or § 58.1-
3983.1 may, in his sole discretion, compromise and settle any disputed assessment of taxes prior
to the time that such assessment is no longer subject to administrative or judicial review
pursuant to applicable law if the commissioner or other official responsible for assessment
determines that there is substantial doubt under applicable law, regulations, or guidelines as to
the taxpayer's liability for such taxes.
  
B. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the treasurer or other official responsible for the
collection of any local tax imposed pursuant to this title may, with the consent of the governing
body or its designee, compromise and settle the amount due and payable when the treasurer or
other official determines that the collection of the entire amount due and owing is in substantial
doubt and the best interests of the locality will be served by such compromise. Whenever a tax
otherwise due and owing is compromised pursuant to the provisions of this subsection, the
difference between the amount of tax then due and owing, and the amount of tax paid pursuant
to such compromise, shall be treated for the purposes of § 58.1-3921 in the same fashion as a tax
rendered legally uncollectible by reason of the application of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
  
C. Any offer in compromise submitted to an official responsible for the assessment or collection
of local taxes shall be made in writing and shall be deemed accepted only when the taxpayer is
notified in writing of the acceptance by the responsible official.
  
D. Whenever a compromise and settlement is made pursuant to the provisions of this section, the
responsible official shall make a complete record of the case, including: (i) the tax assessed; (ii)
audit findings, if any; (iii) the taxpayer's grounds for dispute or contest together with all
evidences thereof; (iv) factors calling collectibility into substantial doubt; (v) any nonprivileged
reports or recommendations made with respect to the liability of the taxpayer, the requirements
of effective tax administration considered, and/or the collectibility of taxes due; and (vi) the
amount assessed or accepted and the terms and conditions attendant to settlement or
compromise, with respect to the liability in question.
  
E. The treasurer or other official charged with collection of taxes may deposit into the treasury of
the county, city or town any and all payments submitted with offers in compromise, unless the
taxpayer specifically, clearly and conspicuously directs otherwise in writing at the time the offer
in compromise is submitted to the responsible official. For the purposes of this subsection, no
restrictive endorsement or other notation upon a check or other payment instrument shall
constitute clear and conspicuous notice of a direction not to deposit.
  
F. Upon acceptance of an offer in compromise by the responsible local official with respect to a
tax liability, the matter thereafter may not be reopened except upon a showing of fraud,
malfeasance or misrepresentation of a material fact.
  
2004, c. 526.
  

1 10/5/2017



The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.
  

2 10/5/2017



R-2

 



Council Action Form 2017
SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3 Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4

May 9, 2017

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business

Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 

Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Beacon Theatre 2017 Report

RECOMMENDATION: No action required

BACKGROUND: City Council has requested an update on the Beacon Theatre.  The Beacon Theatre has 
served the city as an economic development catalyst since its renovation was completed in 2014. The 
enclosed presentation demonstrates the growth and importance of the Beacon Theatre.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: Beacon Theatre Financials from 09/30/2016 – 09/30/2017; Presentation

STAFF: Charles E. Dane, Interim City Manager



















Be
ac

on
 T

he
at

re
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n

Th
e 

Be
ac

on
 w

as
 re

no
va

te
d 

as
 a

 $
4.

1 
m

illi
on

 H
ist

or
ic

 T
ax

 C
re

di
t p

ro
je

ct

Re
no

va
tio

n 
be

ga
n 

in
 2

01
2 

an
d 

w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
01

4

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

th
e 

Ho
no

r A
w

ar
d 

fo
r E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
in

 H
ist

or
ic

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
V

irg
in

ia
 S

oc
ie

ty
 A

m
er

ic
an

 In
st

itu
te

 fo
r A

rc
hi

te
ct

s

SL
A

P 
Pr

od
uc

tio
ns

 (L
au

rin
 &

 S
us

ie
 W

illi
s)

 h
ire

d 
as

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t p

ro
m

ot
er

s i
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5



N
ot

ab
le

 A
ct

s a
nd

 E
ve

nt
s

A
ct

s Th
e 

Te
m

p
ta

tio
ns

V
a

ni
lla

 Ic
e

Lo
u 

G
ra

m
m

M
ar

sh
al

l T
uc

ke
r B

an
d

Th
e 

Fo
ur

 T
op

s

D
el

b
er

t M
cC

lin
to

n

Th
e 

W
a

ile
rs

Bl
ue

 O
ys

te
r C

ul
t

A
nd

 m
an

y 
ot

he
rs

Ev
en

ts W
ed

d
in

g 
Re

ce
p

tio
ns

Be
ac

on
 H

ill 
C

hu
rc

h

Im
pe

riu
m

 R
ed

 C
ar

pe
t E

ve
nt

W
in

e 
Fe

st
iv

a
l

C
ul

tu
ra

l F
es

tiv
a

l

Re
gi

on
al

 C
on

fe
re

nc
es

Fi
lm

 In
d

us
try

 R
en

ta
ls

Lig
ht

 U
p

 th
e 

N
ig

ht

M
em

or
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s



N
um

be
r o

f S
ho

w
s a

nd
 E

ve
nt

s P
er

 Y
ea

r

27

43

66
68

45

31

60

99

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

*

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f S
ho

w
s

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f E
ve

nt
s

*2
01

7 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

 fo
r Y

ea
r E

nd
 T

ot
a

ls



G
ro

ss
 T

ic
ke

t S
al

e 
Re

ve
nu

es
 fr

om
 S

ho
w

s &
 

Re
nt

al
 R

ev
en

ue
s f

ro
m

 E
ve

nt
s

$2
97

,7
54

$3
86

,3
37

$6
22

,1
10

$5
26

,8
62

$2
5,

48
6

$3
2,

44
8

$8
3,

48
3

$1
26

,5
93

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

*

G
ro

ss
 T

ic
ke

t S
al

e 
Re

ve
nu

e 
fro

m
 S

ho
w

s
G

ro
ss

 R
en

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
 fr

om
 E

ve
nt

s

*2
01

7 
Tic

ke
t S

a
le

s &
 E

ve
nt

 R
en

ta
l I

nc
om

es
 a

s o
f O

ct
ob

er
 1

2t
h



Re
ve

nu
e 

vs
. L

os
s

$3
23

,2
40

$4
18

,7
85

$7
05

,5
93

$6
53

,4
55

$5
67

,0
00

$1
80

,9
66

$9
7,

27
7

20
14

20
15

20
16

*2
01

7

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 fr

om
 T

ic
ke

t S
al

es
 &

 R
en

ta
l I

nc
om

e
N

et
 L

os
s

*2
01

7 
Re

ve
nu

e 
&

 L
os

s a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
17



Be
ac

on
 T

he
at

re
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct

Bu
sin

es
se

s 
ci

tin
g 

th
e 

Be
ac

on
 a

s a
 p

rim
ar

y 
re

as
on

 fo
r l

oc
at

in
g 

in
 H

op
ew

el
l:

Th
e 

Bo
at

ho
us

e 
at

 C
ity

 P
oi

nt

Sa
uc

y’
s

Th
e 

Be
ac

on
 h

as
 h

os
te

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

te
le

vi
sio

n 
an

d 
m

ov
ie

 p
ro

du
ct

io
ns

:
Im

p
er

iu
m

Lo
vi

ng

Ho
m

el
a

nd

N
on

-L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
er

’s
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 si
te

 th
e 

Be
ac

on
 T

he
at

re
, L

ib
ra

ry
 a

nd
 

M
ar

in
a 

as
 tr

em
en

do
us

 a
ss

et
s f

or
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 d

ow
nt

ow
n



Q
ue

st
io

ns
?



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3
 

 

 

 



H
op

ew
el

l D
ow

nt
ow

n
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p

20
17

 In
 R

ev
ie

w



St
at

e 
of

 th
e 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
A

dd
re

ss

N
ew

 e
ve

nt
 fo

r 2
01

7!

N
et

w
or

ki
ng

 e
ve

nt
 w

ith
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

up
da

te
 fr

om
 H

DP

20
0+

 a
tte

nd
an

ce





Th
ir

d 
Th

ur
sd

ay
 O

pe
n 

A
ir

 M
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

N
ew

 e
ve

nt
 s

er
ie

s 
in

 2
01

7!

1,
50

0+
 a

tte
nd

ee
s 

at
 e

ve
nt

s 
M

ay
-A

ug
us

t

In
cr

ea
se

d 
re

ve
nu

e 
fo

r 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

re
ta

ile
rs

Fe
at

ur
ed

 3
0+

 lo
ca

l v
en

do
rs

 a
t 

ea
ch

 e
ve

nt

Br
ou

gh
t i

n 
$3

,5
00

+ 
in

 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

ps

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d.

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d.

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

ag
e 

cca
nnnnn

ooot
 

ann
nonooo

t 
cuccucuu

rrr
en

t
en

t
re

nt
ly

 b
nt

ly
 b

tly
 b

ee
ddddii

sspsp
l

ur
bee

 dd
iddii
sp

l
iss

plppp
aayyy

eeedddd
..

aayyy
eeded

.
yyy

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d.



Fo
ur

th
 A

nn
ua

l B
ut

ts
 to

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
At

te
nd

an
ce

 o
f 1

,0
00

+

G
en

er
at

ed
 o

ve
r $

3,
00

0 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

ps

Re
co

rd
 h

ig
h 

of
 9

 a
m

at
eu

r B
BQ

 
co

m
pe

tit
or

s

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d.

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d.



R
et

ai
lin

g 
Pr

om
ot

io
ns

Th
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d.

im
ag

e 
ca

n
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

c
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

c
hi

s 
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

agg
e

nnnn
oott

hi
s

ge
nn

o
nn

ot
 t 

is
nn

o
nnnn

ooott
 

nnnn
oot

 cc
ucccuu
rrr

en
cu

rr
eennn

tttllyy
be

di
sp

l
be

 d
is

e
di

e 
di

sppp
l

ccu
rrr

ennn
tttllyyy

be
di

sp
e 

di
l

nnttt
llyyy

 b
e 

di
spsppp

l
ccu

r
n

ly
e 

i
be

 d
is

p
y 

be
 d

is
pl

yy
ppp

aaayyy
eye
dd

aaayayay
edd

.
aay

eddd
.

yy



20
17

 U
pc

om
in

g 
Ev

en
ts

4t
h 

An
nu

al
 H

ar
ve

st
 F

es
tiv

al
: S

at
ur

da
y, 

N
ov

em
be

r 1
8t

h 
fr

om
 1

:0
0-

5:
00

pm

Sm
al

l B
us

in
es

s 
Sa

tu
rd

ay
: S

at
ur

da
y,

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

5t
h

Li
gh

t U
p 

th
e 

N
ig

ht
 H

ol
id

ay
 C

el
eb

ra
tio

n:
 

Su
nd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 3

rd
 fr

om
 5

:0
0-

8:
00

pm





Ev
en

t S
po

ns
or

sh
ip

s 
& 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

20
17

 e
ve

nt
s 

br
ou

gh
t i

n 
ov

er
 $

13
,0

00
 in

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

s 
fo

r t
he

 H
DP

CS
X 

Co
rp

or
at

io
n:

 $
5,

00
0

Tr
ap

ez
iu

m
 B

re
w

in
g 

Co
m

pa
ny

: $
2,

00
0

La
nd

en
 S

tr
ap

pi
ng

: $
1,

20
0

M
ar

ks
 &

 H
ar

ris
on

: $
1,

00
0

Vi
rg

in
ia

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ap
ita

l: 
$1

,0
00

Pa
rr

 &
 A

be
rn

at
hy

: $
75

0

O
th

er
 s

po
ns

or
sh

ip
s:

 C
ar

ra
w

ay
 G

la
ss

, V
irg

in
ia

 C
om

m
on

w
ea

lth
 B

an
k,

 E
lli

s 
Fa

m
ily

 D
en

tis
tr

y,
 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
 L

of
ts

, G
eo

rg
e 

Di
ra

do
ur

 S
ta

te
 F

ar
m



20
18

 F
un

ds
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n



20
17

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

en
ov

at
io

ns
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

ca
nn

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
e 

di
sp

la
ye

d.
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

ca
nn

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
e 

di
sp

la
ye

d.
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

ca
nn

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
e 

di
sp

la
ye

d.
Th

is
 im

ag
e 

ca
nn

ot
 

hiTh
is

 im
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 t
Th

is
im

ag
e

c
s 

imm
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
tl

b
di

l
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

e 
di

sp
l

b
di

ur
rre

nt
ly

 b
e 

di
s

d
ayy

eed
.



N
ew

 B
us

in
es

se
s 

& 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 E

xp
an

si
on

s



M
ak

er
Sp

ac
e 

Fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 S

tu
dy



N
ew

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

: S
m

al
l-

Sc
al

e 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng







R-4



SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Vice Mayor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3 Councilor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7
Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4

R-5

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business
Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 
Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approve and file a request to subdivide 15 Rev. C.W. Harris 
Street, also identified as Sub-Parcel #048-0339, from one lot to two lots. 

ISSUE: A request from Cynthia R. Butterworth to subdivide 15 Rev. C. W. Harris Street.

RECOMMENDATION: The City Administration recommends the approval of a request to subdivide 
2.562 acres of 15 Rev. C.W. Harris Street, legally identifed as Lot 1, 2.562 Acres, also known as Sub-
Parcel # 048-0339 into two lots with 1.950 acres and 0.612 acres respectively. 

TIMING: City Council action is requested on October 24, 2017.

BACKGROUND: The purpose of this plat is to subdivide one parcel into two parcels.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the subdivision at their October 4, 2017 meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: Attachment 1: Staff Report
Attachment 2: Proposed Subdivision Plat

STAFF: Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development 



 

Cynthia R. Butterworth 
Subdivision Request: +_ 2.562 acres Subdivision, 
Industrial Area (15 Rev. C.W. Harris Street) 
  
 
Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting 
October 24, 2017 
 
 

This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to provide information to City 
Council to assist them in making an informed decision on this matter. 
 
I. MEETING INFORMATION: 

Planning Commission October 5, 2017 Recommended Approval 
City Council  October 24, 2017 Pending  
   
 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 
Proposed Zoning: N/A 

Existing Zoning: M-1 , Limited Industrial  District  

Parcel Size: Total Acreage: 2.562 acres 

Owner: Cynthia R. Butterworth 

Location of Property:  15 Rev. C.W. Harris Street  

Election Ward: Ward 2 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Industrial  

Strategic Plan Goal: Industrial  

Map Location(s): Tax ID Sub-Parcel #  049-0339 
Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  

South:  
East: 
West: 

R-4 (Booker Street Apartments) 
M-1`  
R-4 (Davisville/Bland Court) 
M-1 

   

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMUARY: 
 
The City of Hopewell has received a request from Catherine R. Butterworth to subdivide 
a 2.562 acre parcel of land into two (2) lots. The property is currently zoned Limited 
Industrial District (M-1), and is located on Rev. C.W. Harris Street. 
 
 



Case: Resubdivision of 2.562 acre Subdivision, Industrial Area Page 2 

IV. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 
The subject property is currently zoned M-1, Limited Industrial District, identified as Tax 
Sub-parcel # 048-0339.  The property is within the Industrial Area. As the plat submitted 
by Townes Engineering dated October 18, 2017 illustrates, if approved, Lot 1 would be 
approximately 1.950 acres and Lot 2 would be 0.612 acres. The plat shows two buildings 
currently on the property; one an office and the other a warehouse.   
 

V. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
The total acreage of the property is 2.562 acres. Both buildings are currently located on 
one property. This is non-conforming and would not be allowed under current zoning 
regulations. Currently the buildings do not meet the 15 feet side yard setback 
requirements.  With the subdivision of the property the buildings would be located on 
separate properties but the side yard setback issue would remain, however, the non-
conforming would be removed.  The M-1 zoning district has no minimum lot size 
requirements so the subdivided lots would conform to the City s Subdivision Ordinance. .   
 

VI. APPLICABLE CITY REGULATIONS     
The provisions of the Subdivision Ordinance that are germane to this subdivision request 
include the following: 
 
Article 6, Preparation, Approval and Recording of Subdivision Plats,  
Section 6-10, Approval of Preliminary Plat: 

 
 "The City shall refer the preliminary plat to the Planning Commission and to the City 

Council for Council's information. The Planning Commission shall discuss the 
preliminary plat with the subdivider in order to determine whether or not the preliminary 
plat generally conforms to the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning 
ordinance and any other applicable City plans or ordinances.  Within sixty (60) days of 
the preliminary plat submission to the Planning Commission, the subdivider shall be 
advised in writing by formal letter of approval, approval with conditions or disapproval 

 
 

Article 6, Preparation, Approval and Recording of Subdivision Plats,  
 Section 6-14, Approval of Final Plat: 
 

The final plat shall not be approved until the subdivider has complied with the general 
requirements and minimum standards of design in accordance with this ordinance, and 
has made satisfactory arrangements for performance bond, cash or cash bond to cover the 
cost of necessary improvements, in lieu of construction, to the satisfaction of Council.  
Approval of final plat shall be written on the f   
 
 
 
 



Case: Resubdivision of 2.562 acre Subdivision, Industrial Area Page 3 

 
VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The staff recommends approval of the resubdivision request submitted by Cynthia R. 
Butterworth, to subdivide 2.562 acres into two lots; Lot 1 at 1.950 acres and Lot 2 at 0.612 acres.  
The subdivision will allow the office and warehouse to be on separate parcels so that the office 
parcel can be sold. The subdivision conforms to the City Subdivision Ordinance.  
 
VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission has no issues with the subdivision of +- 2.562 acre Subdivision, 
Industrial Area into Lot 1 and Lot 2, located at 15 Rev. C.W. Harris Street.  The Commission 
voted 5 to 0 to approve the subdivision at their meeting on October 5, 2017. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Application 
2. Subdivision Plat  Revised October 18, 2017 

 
 

 
 



Case: Resubdivision of 2.562 acre Subdivision, Industrial Area Page 4 

 
 



Case: Resubdivision of 2.562 acre Subdivision, Industrial Area Page 5 



Case: Resubdivision of 2.562 acre Subdivision, Industrial Area Page 6 

This page is intentionally blank 



 



 

 

 

 

R-5
 

 



SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Dalton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3 Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda
Public Hearing
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business
Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 
Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Discuss a request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, 
Article XI-A, Corridor Development District (B-4) to allow self-service storage facilities, by 
Conditional Use Permit. 

ISSUE: The City has received a request to amend the Zoning Ordinance to add a self-service storage 
facility, with a Conditional Use Permit, in the B-4 Zoning District.

RECOMMENDATION: The City Administration recommends that City Council receive information 
regarding the request in order to be informed prior to a setting a public hearing. 

TIMING: City Amdministration is requesting a public hearing be held on November 14, 2017.

BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission was briefed on the request at their September 2017 meeting. 
The Commission held a public hearing regarding to consider citizen comments at their October 4, 2017 
meeting.  The Commission voted to 5 to 0 to recommend approval of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment to 
the City Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Allow development of a self-service storage facility in the B-4 Zoning District.  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 1. Application
2. Amendment 
3. Staff Report 

STAFF: Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development



The City of 
Hopewell, Virginia 

300 N. Main Street  Hopewell Virginia 23860  (804) 541-2220  Fax: (804) 541-2318 

TO:  Hopewell City Council 

DATE:  October 24, 2017 

SUBJECT:   Amendment ARTICLE XI-A, Section A. of the City of Hopewell Zoning 
Ordinance to allow self-service storage facilities in the B-4, Corridor 
Development District.   

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Hopewell has received a Zoning Ordinance Amendment request from Amin Land 
Holdings, LLC to add self-service storage facilities, with a Conditional Use Permit, in the B-4,
Corridor Development District.  Currently self-service storage facilities are allowed by right in 
the M-1, Limited Industrial District and M-2, Intensive Industrial District, and by Conditional 
Use Permit in the B-3, Highway Commercial District.  

II. PRESENT ZONING ORDINANCE PROVISIONS

Presently, Article XI-A, Corridor Development District, Section A:  Use Regulations, of the 
does not include self-service storage facilities as a permitted use. A list 

of uses permitted in the B-4 District has been included with this report.  The B-4 District allows 
such uses as carwashes, banks, laundry and dry cleaning, restaurants and convenience stores by 
right.  The intent of the B-4 District as defined in the Zoning Ordinance is: 

which will allow and encourage a harmonious mixing of a variety of commercial, high density 
residential, off

III. STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

After careful review of the request, Staff recommends approval of the request for Self-storage 
facilities to be allowed in the B-4 Zoning District only by approval of a Conditional Use Permit. 
This will allow each project to be reviewed by the Planning Commission and the City Council.  
We recommend using the same conditions that are in place for self-storage facilities in the B-3 
District. They are as follows: 

Department of Development



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 
1. All self-service storage facilities in the B-4 District be fully enclosed. All operations, 

activities and storage shall be conducted within a completely enclosed building; 
2. The leasing office must have a brick façade; 
3. Commercial activities being run in and out of storage units shall be prohibited; 
4. Storage of feed, fertilizer, grain, soil conditioners, pesticides, chemicals, explosives and 

other hazardous materials, asphalt, brick, cement, gravel, rock, sand and similar 
construction materials, inoperable vehicles, or bulk storage of fuels shall be prohibited. 
The operator of the self-service storage facility shall include a provision to this effect in 
any lease used to rent the storage units;  

5. Self-service storage facilities may not be located on land abutting a residential district or 
use; 

6. Storage of boats, recreational vehicles, and motor vehicles shall be prohibited. This 
includes outside storage. The operator of the self-service storage facility shall include a 
provision to this effect in any lease used to rent the storage units;  

7. All building façades abutting public right-of-ways shall have a brick façade. 
 
 
 
IV. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 
 
The Hopewell Planning Commission voted 5 to 0 at their October 5, 2017 to recommend 
approval of the request for a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend Article XI-A, Corridor 
Development District, Section A., Use Regulations to allow self-service storage facilities by 
Conditional Use Permit.  
 
 
V.  CITY COUNCIL 
 
Staff requests the City Council set a public hearing for November 14, 2017 to consider citizen 
comments regarding this request for a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to allow self-service 
storage facilities in the B-4 Zoning District by Conditional Use Permit.  
 
While the City received this request from Amin Land Holdings, LLC, this request would affect 
all property in the zoned B-4.  If approved, the amendment does not grant Amin Land Holdings, 
LLC the right to construct the storage facility.  They are required to file a Conditional Use Permit 
application and follow the application process. 
 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 

Article XI-A 
Corridor Development District (B-4) 

 

STATEMENT OF INTENT 
This district is intended to provide a special district for the Woodlawn/Oaklawn Corridor area 
which will allow and encourage a harmonious mixing of a variety of commercial, office and 
professional uses and financial institutions. 

 

A. USE REGULATIONS 
Structures to be erected and land to be used shall be for the following uses: 

1. Automobile and truck sales and service establishments and truck rental and agencies, 
provided that all vehicle lifts and pits, dismantled and wrecked automobiles, and all 
parts and supplies be located within a building enclosed on all sides; and provided 
that all service and repair of motor vehicles be conducted in a building enclosed on all 
sides. 

2. Automotive parts stores. 

3. Barber shops and beauty parlors. 

4. Bookstores. 

5. Car washes. 

6. Casual and formal wear stores. 

7. Churches. 

8. Cigarette, cigar and tobacco retail distributor. 

9. Commercial banks and financial institutions, not to include check cashing 
establishments. 

10. Contractors' establishments and display rooms, where business is conducted entirely 
within a completely enclosed building and where there is no storage of supplies or 
equipment outside the building. 

11. Convenience stores with gasoline. 

12. Convenience stores without gasoline. 

13. Craft Beer/Tap Room. 

14. Day nurseries and child care centers. 

15. Financial and tax preparation services. 

16. Fire stations and rescue squads. 

17. Florist. 

18. Grocery store. 



4 | P a g e  
 

 

 

19. Home furnishing store. 

20. Hotels and motels. 

21. Institutions of higher learning. 

22. Insurance agency. 

23. Laundry and dry cleaning. 

24. Medical and dental offices. 

25. Microbrewery/Restaurant. 

26. Municipal and private utilities. 

27. Night clubs and dance halls, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

28. Off street parking. 

29. Pet shops and supplies, excluding boarding kennels. 

30. Pharmacy. 

31. Plant nurseries and greenhouses. 

32. Post Offices. 

33. Printing shops. 

34. Radio or television broadcasting stations, studios, or offices. 

35. Real estate agency. 

36. Restaurants. 

37. Schools, special 

38. Self-Service Storage Facility, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City 
Council 

39. Service stations. 

40. Shoe repair. 

41. Single family dwellings, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council, with 
all area, lot width, and setback requirements set on a case-by-case basis by Council in 
the permit. 

42. Sports facilities, indoor. 

43. Sports facilities, outdoor, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

44. Sporting goods and hunting supplies. 

45. Tailor and seamstress. 

46. Tattoo parlor and body piercing establishments, with a Conditional Use Permit issued 
by City Council. 

47. Telecommunications towers or antenna for wireless transmission above the frequency 
of 20,000 Hertz (hz) with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

48. Theaters, motion pictures theaters, and assembly halls, but excluding drive-ins. 



5 | P a g e  
 

 

49. Veterinary hospitals and animal shelters. 

50. Video rental stores, not to include adult video establishments. 

51. Wine bar 

52. Winery/Restaurant  

 

B. AREA REGULATIONS 
1. For each building containing or intended to contain one (1) or more permitted use, 

there shall be a minimum lot area of twelve thousand (12,000) square feet. 

2. For each apartment on the second or subsequent floors of a commercial/office use, 
there shall be a minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per dwelling 
unit. This is not in addition to the twelve thousand (12,000) square foot minimum lot 
area required above. 

3. For multi-family uses, there shall be a minimum lot area of twelve thousand (12,000) 
square feet and one dwelling unit shall be permitted for each one thousand (1,000) 
square feet of lot area. 

 

C. LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS 
The minimum lot width for permitted uses in this district shall be one hundred (100) feet. 

 

D. SETBACK REGULATIONS 
Structures shall be located at least forty (40) feet from any street or highway right-of-
way. 

 

E. YARD REGULATIONS 
1. Side: The minimum width of each side yard for a permitted use in this district shall be 

ten (10) feet. 

2. Rear: Each main structure shall have a rear yard of at least twenty five (25) feet. 

 

F. HEIGHT REGULATIONS 
Buildings may be erected up to seventy (70) feet from grade. 

 

G. SUPPLEMENTAL PARKING REGULATIONS 
Off-street parking spaces shall be in conformity with the requirements for specific uses as 
set forth in Article XVIII, however, no off-street parking or paved travel way shall be 
located within ten (10) feet of a right-of-way; no off-street parking shall be permitted 
within ten (10) feet of the sideline. 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

 

H. SCREENING 
At least thirty (30) feet of vegetation screening is required along the northern side of 
Virginia Street and the southern side of Poplar Street. Buffers shall be required to 
separate residential from all other uses. 

 

I. LANDSCAPING 
All non-residential uses, including parking lots where a front yard is provided, shall be 
landscaped. A landscaping plan is required to be submitted in conjunction with the Site 
Plan Requirements of Article XVI. 

 

J. REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTED USES 
Before a building permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use 
in this district, or a permit issued for a new use, all requirements of Article XVI, Site Plan 
Requirements, shall be met. 

 

K. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
Rear entrances for businesses will not be allowed along Virginia Avenue Street or along 
Poplar Street. 

 

L. CONVERSION OF USE IN B-4 DISTRICT 
In order for property to be converted from residential use to any other permitted use, all 
area, lot width, setback, yard, supplemental parking, screening, and landscaping 
requirements of the zoning district must be met. 

 
 



 

 

 

 

R-6
 

 



Council Action Form 2017
SUMMARY:
Y N  Y N  

Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3   Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4

May 9, 2017

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business

Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 

Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Appropriation of Returned EDA Funds

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the consideration for the allocation of $250,000 of returned 
EDA funds to Riverwalk funds and to place the remaining returned EDA funds in reserve for future City 
Council approval of the City Park entranceway and statuary projects.

BACKGROUND: The Riverwalk will be a regional waterfront amenity connecting downtown to the 
marina.

FISCAL IMPACT: Up to $250,000 of returned EDA funds

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: None

STAFF: 
Charles E. Dane, Interim City Manager
Tevya Griffin, Director of Development
Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 
Austin Anderson, Construction Manager



 

 

 

 

R-7
 

 



Council Action Form 2017
SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3 Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4

Insert 
Date of 
Meeting

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business

Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 

Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of Resolution for Personal 
Property Tax Relief (PPTR) Percentage for 2017

RECOMMENDATION: The City Treasurer and Commissioner of Revenue 
recommend approval of the PPTR percentage at 46% for tax year 2017.

TIMING: City Council action is requested on October 24, 2017 so the Commissioner 
of Revenue may complete the 2017 personal property book by November 15, 2017.

BACKGROUND: In accordance with changes by the 2005 General Assembly, the 
State's personal property tax relief percentage is based on a predetermined lump sum 
amount paid annually to localities since tax year 2006.  Hopewell's predetermined 
amount for tax relief is $1,618,029.64 and is paid each year to the City in four 
installments.  The $1.6 million is used in the calculation to estimate the State's portion or 
PPTR percentage for qualifying vehicles on the first $20,000 in value.  The tax relief 
percentage is estimated or recalculated annually and may change from year to year as the 
taxable base for qualifying vehicles changes.  For 2017, the percentage of 46% produces
the amount closest to (without going below) the $1.6 million paid to the City by the State.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Minimal

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 2017 PPTR Percentage Estimates
Proposed Resolution

STAFF: Teresa L. Batton, Treasurer
Debra K. Reason, Master Commissioner of Revenue



2017 Personal Property Tax Relief (PPTR) Percentage Estimates

Annual State Tax Share/PPTR received $1,618,000

PERCENTAGE ESTIMATES

State Share from preliminary 2017 Personal Property Book using
45% relief (approx. $13,000 less than PPTR received) $1,605,000

State Share from preliminary 2017 Personal Property Book using
46% relief (approx. $24,000 more than PPTR received)*** $1,642,000

State Share from preliminary 2017 Personal Property Book using
47% relief (approx. $56,000 more than PPTR received) $1,674,000

PLEASE NOTE: Due to proration, personal property taxes are adjusted routinely by the 
Commissioner’s Office.  For any given year, tax abatements are normally greater than tax 
supplements, causing the estimated state share to decrease.  Accordingly, choosing an 
amount slightly more than the $1,618,000 paid by the state allows the estimated share to 
be adjusted “down” for net abatements.

Please also note that the tax relief percentages estimated above are lower than the 49% 
approved for tax year 2016. The City’s tax base continues to grow (both in value and 
number of vehicles) which, in turn, causes the PPTR percentage to decrease. 

RECOMMENDATION

***It is recommended that the PPTR percentage of 46% be approved for tax year 
2017.  This percentage produces the amount closest to (without going below) the 
$1,618,000 paid annually to the City by the State.



 

 

 

 

R-8
 

 



SUMMARY:
Y N Y N

Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5
Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6
Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 Mayor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme:
Civic Engagement
Culture & Recreation 
Economic Development
Education
Housing
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply)

Order of Business:
Consent Agenda   
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request     
Regular Business
Reports of Council Committees 

Action:
Approve and File 
Take Appropriate Action 
Receive & File (no motion required)
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading
Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Routine Grant Approval

ISSUE: The Department of Development has received a $24,000 grant from the Cameron Foundation
for the Conservation and Preservation of Historic Cedar Trees on Cedar Lane. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the grant.  The award letter must be received 
prior to November 15, 2017.  

TIMING:  October 24, 2017

BACKGROUND: The Architectural Review Board (ARB) requested Council approve an ordinance to 
protect cedar trees along Cedar Lane that act as a gateway into the Historic City Point District.  The 
ordinance was passed on September 27, 2016.  Under the direction of Mary Calos, Chairman and Rita 
Joyner, Vice Chairman of the ARB, Board members and Staff applied for a historic preservation grant 
through the Cameron Foundation in August 2017.  We are happy to announce the approval of grant 
funds for $24,000 to implement the goals of the cedar tree preservation ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT: $24,000 to conserve and protect cedar trees on cedar lane

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Award letter

STAFF: Tevya W. Griffin, AICP, Director of Development

SUMMARY:

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER

STAFF:   







 

 

REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY

 

 



 

 

REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY CLERK
 

 



REPORTS OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEES
INDIVIDUAL REQUEST

ANY OTHER COUNCILOR



ADJOURN 


